
 

 

 

San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation 

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

Thursday June 9th, 2022 

3 p.m. 
 

This meeting will be held virtually: 
Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81926660362?pwd=CqNt4tTUAavBEO00i0oCWgKlZJtZdj.1 

Meeting ID: 819 2666 0362 

Passcode: 410174 

One tap mobile 

+16699009128,,81926660362#,,,,*410174# US (San Jose) 

+12532158782,,81926660362#,,,,*410174# US (Tacoma) 

 

Item 
No. 

Presenter Item Type Topic 
Packet 
Page 

Time 
(minutes) 

1. - - Public Comment - 5 

2. Board 
Meeting 

Resolution 

Resolution 2022-10, Part 1a, regarding the 
Review and Approval of the June 9th, 2022, 
Agenda and Consent Items and Part 1b, 
regarding the Review and Approval of May 
12th, 2022 Meeting Minutes 

4 5 

3. Averill Action 
Resolution 2022-11: Lease changes and 
Amendment for Tenants at 135 and 137 
Society Dr. 

6 5 

4. Averill Action 
Resolution 2022-12 budget and capital plan 
amendments 

33 10 

5. Distefano Report May Operations Update 42 10 

6. Averill Report Executive Directors Report 46 10 

7. All Report Round Table Updates and Reports - 5 

 



5304 FTA program funding for multimodal transportation planning (jointly administered with FHWA) in 

metropolitan areas and States

5311 FTA program funding for rural and small Urban Areas (Non‐Urbanized Areas)

5339 FTA program funding for buses and bus facilities

AAC SMART Administrative Advisory Committee

ADA Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

AIS Agenda Item Summary

CAAA Clean Air Act Amendments of 1990 (federal)

CAC SMART Community Advisory Committee

CDOT Colorado Department of Transportation

CMAQ Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality (a FHWA funding program)

DBE Disadvantaged Business Enterprise

DOT (United States) Department of Transportation

DTR CDOT Division of Transit & Rail

FAST ACT Fixing America’s Surface Transportation Act (federal legislation, December 2015

FASTER Funding Advancements for Surface Transportation and Economic Recovery (Colorado’s S.B. 09‐108)

FHWA Federal Highway Administration

FTA Federal Transit Administration

FY Fiscal Year (October – September for federal funds; July to June for state

funds; January to December for local funds)

FFY Federal Fiscal Year

HOV High Occupancy Vehicle

HUTF Highway Users Tax Fund (the State’s primary funding source for highways)

IGA Inter‐Governmental Agreement

ITS Intelligent Transportation Systems

LRP or LRTP Long Range Plan or Long Range Transportation Plan

MOA Memorandum of Agreement

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NAA Non‐Attainment Area (for certain air pollutants)

NAAQS National Ambient Air Quality Standards

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act

PPP (also P3) Public Private Partnership

R3 or R5 Region 3  or Region 5 of the Colorado Department of Transportation

RPP Regional Priority Program (a funding program of the Colorado Transportation Commission)

RSH Revenue Service Hour 

RSM Revenue Service Mile

RTP Regional Transportation Plan

SOV Single Occupant Vehicle

STAC State Transportation Advisory Committee

STIP Statewide Transportation Improvement Program

TA (previously TAP) Transportation Alternatives program (a FHWA funding program)

TC Transportation Commission of Colorado

TIP Transportation Improvement Program

Title VI U.S. Civil Rights Act of 1964, prohibiting discrimination in connection with programs and activities receiving 

federal financial assistance

TPR Transportation Planning Region (state‐designated)

TRAC Transit & Rail Advisory Committee (for CDOT)

VMT Vehicle Miles Traveled

GLOSSARY

Revised 10/26/18



San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation 

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

Thursday June 9th, 2022 

3 p.m. 

This meeting will be held virtually: 
Please join the meeting from your computer, tablet or smartphone. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81926660362?pwd=CqNt4tTUAavBEO00i0oCWgKlZJtZdj.1 

Meeting ID: 819 2666 0362 

Passcode: 410174 

One tap mobile 

+16699009128,,81926660362#,,,,*410174# US (San Jose)

+12532158782,,81926660362#,,,,*410174# US (Tacoma)

Item 
No. 

Presenter Item Type Topic 

1. - - Public Comment 

2. Board 
Meeting 

Resolution 

Resolution 2022-10, Part 1a, regarding the 
Review and Approval of the June 9th, 2022, 
Agenda and Consent Items and Part 1b, 
regarding the Review and Approval of May 
12th, 2022 Meeting Minutes 

3. Averill Action 
Resolution 2022-11: Lease changes and 
Amendment for Tenants at 135 and 137 
Society Dr. 

4. Averill Action 
Resolution 2022-12 budget and capital plan 
amendments 

5. Distefano Report May Operations Update 

6. Averill Report Executive Directors Report 

7. All Report Round Table Updates and Reports 

1



San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation 

Board of Directors Meeting May 12th, 2022 Regular Meeting 

Virtual meeting minutes 

Member Directors Present: Town of Telluride – Adrienne Christy.  San Miguel County – Kris Holstrom. 

Town of Mountain Village – Patrick Berry, Marti Prohaska, Harvey Mogensen (Alternate). Town of Rico – 

Joe Dillsworth 

Staff Present: David Averill and Kari Distefano (SMART). Kelly Kronenberg, Kari McClanahan (Telluride 

Express). Mike Bordogna (San Miguel County). 

The meeting was called to order at 3:01 p.m. 

Item 1: Public Comment 

No public comment was offered. 

Item 2: Resolution 2022-8 Part 1a, regarding the Review and Approval of the May 12th, 2022 Agenda 

and Consent Items and Part 1b, regarding the Review and Approval of March 10th, 2022 Meeting 

Minutes 

Harvey Mogenson moved to adopt Resolution 2022-8, parts 1a and 1b. 
Joe Dillsworth seconded the motion. 

A unanimous vote approved the motion. 

Item 3: Resolution 2022-9, Intergovernmental Agreement with San Miguel County and the Telluride 

Library District for Installation of a Drop Off Kiosk at the Lawson Hill Intercept Lot. 

Adrienne Christy moved to adopt Resolution 2022-9 

Patrick Berry seconded the motion. 

A unanimous vote approved the motion. 

Item 4: 1st Quarter ’22 Performance Report 

Averill provided an update on performance metrics for the first quarter of 2022. Discussion focused on 

increasing ridership, costs per passenger metrics and rising fuel costs. 

Item 5: 1st Quarter ’22 Financial Report 

Averill provided an update on year-to-date revenues and expenditures. Discussion focused on how 

revenue is generally strong so far this fiscal year and is offsetting some of the increased expenses SMART 

is seeing. SMART remains in a strong fiscal position. 

2



Item 6: FY22 Budget and Capital Plan amendment discussion 

Averill presented a draft Amended FY22 budget and corresponding capital plan for discussion and future 

action. Revenue is projected to be higher than what was initially budgeted so a recommendation was 

made to adjust upwards by $220,000. Some expenses are also coming in higher than anticipated and so 

adjustments should be made for these increased operational expenses and capital purchases. The Board 

will consider taking action on the recommended changes to the FY22 budget and capital plan at the June 

meeting. 

Item 7: January 2022 Operations Update 

Distefano presented the March and April Operations report. Updates included Off Season service, a review 

of post off-season changes being made to the Lawson Hill and Norwood schedules, ridership report, 

anticipated next efforts for development of a passenger app, and ridership. 

Item 8: Executive Directors Report 

Averill gave updates on grants, Lawson facility repairs, the Meadows Underpass design project, and 

progress on the FY21 Fiscal Audit. 

Item 9: Round Table updates and reports 

A brief discussion of pending summer roadway construction activities took place. 

Item 10: Executive Session 

Executive Session pursuant to C.R.S. 24-6-402 4(a) and 4(e) (I),(Open Meetings Law)  and Sections 6.09 

(a) (1) and (a) (5) of the SMART Bylaws for the purpose of: determining positions that may be subject

to negotiations, developing strategy for negotiations and instructing negotiators regarding possible

acquisition of real property to discuss potential real estate transaction.

The meeting was adjourned at 4:27 p.m. 

3



A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL 

TRANSPORTATION EVIDENCING ACTIONS TAKEN AT ITS JUNE 9TH, 2022 REGULAR MEETING 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-10 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation (“SMART”) was approved by the 

registered electors of the Town of Telluride, Town of Mountain Village, and that portion of the SMART 

combination that are within that part of the SMART boundaries located within unincorporated San Miguel 

County, pursuant to the Colorado Regional Transportation Authority Law, C.R.S. Title 43, Article 4, Part 6, at the 

general election held on November 8, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, SMART is governed by the Colorado Regional Transportation Authority Law and SMART 

Intergovernmental Agreement (“SMART IGA”) conditionally approved by each of the governing bodies of the 

Town of Telluride, Town of Mountain Village and San Miguel County pending approval by the registered electors 

at the November 8, 2016 general election; and 

WHEREAS, the Board held a regular meeting on June 9th, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, Section 3.09 of the SMART IGA requires all actions of the Board to be taken by written 

resolution; and 

WHEREAS, the Board desires to take action on certain items set forth below in accordance with the 

SMART IGA. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AS FOLLOWS: 

1. At its June 9th, 2022, regular meeting the Board took action on the following:

a. Approval of the June 9th, 2022, meeting agenda (Exhibit A)

b. Approval of the Board meeting minutes for the May 12th, 2022, regular meeting (Exhibit B)

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AT A REGULAR PUBLIC MEETING THIS JUNE 9TH, 2022. 

______________________________________ 

Kris Holstrom, Board Chair 

ATTEST: 

________________________________ 

David Averill, Executive Director 

4

CLICK HERE TO RETURN TO AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY (AIS) 

San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation 

Meeting Date Agenda Item Submitted By 

June 9th, 2022 3 D. Averill

Objective/Requested Action 

Action is requested of the Board to amend an existing lease with Telluride Crossfit LLC for 
137 Society Dr. and to execute a new lease with Proset Construction at 135 Society Dr. 

    Report 
    Work Session 
   Discussion 

 X Action 

Key Points 

At the time of its purchase of 137 Society Dr. SMART assumed the existing lease with Telluride Crossfit (Exhibit A). 
SMART and Telluride Crossfit then executed an Amendment to the lease (Exhibit B), in December of 2020 (Exhibit B). 
The Tenants have requested an extension of the term of the lease to June 30th, 2024. The Amendment is included as 
Exhibit C. CDOT has approved the extension of this lease with the Tenant. 

Over at 135 Society Dr., the existing leaseholder  (Floored Inc.) desires to terminate their lease and transfer the 
remainder of the term to Proset Construction. This new lease with Proset is included as Exhibit D. 

Committee Discussion 

NA 

Supporting Information 

NA 

Fiscal Impact 

These actions will have a net positive fiscal impact for SMART. 

Advantages 

Revenue generated from these properties helps to offset ongoing maintenance and capital repairs of the facility. 

Disadvantages 

None noted. 

Analysis/Recommendation(s) 

Staff recommends the extension of the lease for 137 Society Dr. with Telluride Crossfit and execution of the new lease 
agreement for 135 Society Dr. with Proset Construction. 

Attachments 

Exhibit A: Original Lease with Telluride Crossfit 
Exhibit B: SMART amendment to lease with Telluride Crossfit 
Exhibit C: NEW amendment with Telluride Crossfit to extend the term of the lease 
Exhibit D: Lease agreement with Proset Construction 

5



RESOLUTION 2022-11 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS  
OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION (SMART) 

APPROVING A LEASE AMENDMENT WITH TELLURIDE CROSSFIT LLC FOR 137 SOCIETY DRIVE AND A 
LEASE WITH PROSET CONSTRUCTION FOR 135 SOCIETY DRIVE  

WHEREAS, the San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation (“SMART”) purchased 135 and 
137 Society Drive in Lawson Hill in October of 2020; and 

WHEREAS, At the time of its purchase of 137 Society Dr. SMART assumed the existing lease with 
Telluride Crossfit LLC, dated August 24th 2009, as amended, a copy of which is attached hereto as 
Exhibit "A"; and 

WHEREAS, SMART and Telluride Crossfit LLC executed an Amendment to the lease, attached 
hereto as “Exhibit B”, in December of 2020 (Exhibit B) which, in addition to other changes, extended the 
term of the lease to June 30th, 2023; and 

WHERAS, the Board of Directors desires to execute an amendment to the existing amended 
lease agreement with Telluride Crossfit LLC, to extend the term of the lease to June 30th, 2024, a copy of 
which is attached hereto as Exhibit “C”; and 

WHERAS, Floored Inc. desires to transfer the existing lease for the upstairs office space of 135 
Society Drive to Proset Construction; and 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors desires to enter into a lease agreement with Proset 
Construction for office space at 135 Society Dr. in Lawson Hill, a copy of which is attached hereto, as 
Exhibit “D”; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of SMART as follows: 

THAT, the Board of Directors hereby approves the lease amendment with Telluride Crossfit LLC 
and the lease attached hereto as Exhibit “C”; and 

THAT, the Board of Directors hereby approves the lease with Proset Construction attached 
hereto as Exhibit “D”; and 

THAT, the Board of Directors hereby authorizes and directs the SMART Executive Director to 
execute Exhibits “C” and “D” on behalf of SMART and take all actions necessary and appropriate 
to effectuate this Resolution. 

INTRODUCED, READ AND PASSED by the Board of Directors of the San Miguel Authority for Regional 
Transportation, Telluride, Colorado, at its regular meeting held on June 9th, 2022. 

SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL 
TRANSPORTATION 

6



2 

__________________________________________ 
Kris Holstrom, 
Chairman, Board of Directors 

Date: _____________________________ 

WITNESS my hand this ______ day of ___________________, 2022. 

__________________________________________ 
Executive Director 

7



EXHIBIT A
8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT 

This AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered into effective 
December 16th 2020 by and among the SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION,
(“SMART”) and Colorado Department of Transportation acting through SMART(collectively "Landlord") and 
TELLURIDE GYMNASTICS AND CROSSFIT, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company ("Tenant"). 

RECITALS 

A. At the time of its purchase of 137 Society Landlord assumed that Lease with Tenant dated August 24
2009, as amended, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" (the "Lease").

B. Landlord and Tenant desire to amend the Lease as hereinafter provided.

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows: 

I. Term: The Lease shall be extended to June 30th, 2023. Landlord also agrees that Tenant may terminate
the Lease without penalty upon Sixty (60) days advance written notice if Tenant secures a new location to relocate
its business.

2. General Maintenance Responsibilities:  Landlord agrees to arrange for the roof of the gymnasium space
to be shoveled as needed throughout the term of the Lease.

4. Rent: In recognition of challenges to the Tenant’s business due to the effects of the COVID pandemic,
Landlord agrees to the following Sliding Scale Rent Schedule effective November 1, 2020 upon the following terms
and conditions as agreed to by Tenant:

a) Tenant’s share of HOA dues and Utilities shall remain unchanged from the terms of the original Lease.
b) Tenant’s share of Property Management Fees (where applicable), shall be calculated with the same
percentages as those used to calculate Tenant’s share of HOA dues and Utilities.
c) Landlord and Tenant agree that in months where the COVID level changes, rent for that month will be
prorated to reflect the different rent rates for the number of days of the month under each COVID level.
d) Landlord and Tenant agree that It may be necessary to adjust (either through additional payment by
Tenant or an application credit by Landlord for rent previously paid) monthly rent invoices due to changes
in the COVID mitigation level throughout the month.

Sliding Scale Rent Schedule for 137 Society Dr. 

County COVID Level Terms 

Green: Protect our 
Neighbors 

$6626 base rent + Tenant Share of HOA dues and Utilities 

Blue: Cautious $5426 base rent + Tenant Share of HOA dues and Utilities 

Yellow: Concern $4226 base rent + Tenant Share of HOA dues and Utilities 

Orange: High Risk $3000 base rent + Tenant Share of HOA dues and Utilities 

Red: Stay at Home: $1800 base rent + Tenant Share of HOA dues and Utilities 

Purple 
$0 base rent + Tenant Share of HOA dues, Utilities, and Property management 
fees. 

7. Effect of Amendment: Except as expressly modified herein, the Lease is unmodified, is hereby ratified and
affirmed, will remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and will apply to the Premises. If there is

EXHIBIT B
19



any inconsistency between the terms of the Lease and the terns of this Amendment, provisions of this Amendment 
will govern and control the rights and obligations of Landlord and Tenant. 

8. Counterparts:  This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be
deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts taken together will constitute one and the same instrument.
This Amendment may be executed and delivered by one party to the other by facsimile or e-mail (PDF)
transmission, and counterparts executed and delivered in such manner will be fully binding and enforceable to the
same effect as if an original had been executed and delivered instead.
In all other respects, the Lease Agreement remains in full force and effect.

"LANDLORD" SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 

By: _____________________________ 
Printed Name: David Averill 
Title: Executive Director 

"TENANT" TELLURIDE GYMNASTICS AND CROSSFIT, LLC 
By: _____________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 

20



AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT 

This AMENDMENT TO LEASE AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered into effective 
_________ 2022 by and among the SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION,  (“SMART”) and 
Colorado Department of Transportation acting through SMART(collectively "Landlord") and TELLURIDE 
GYMNASTICS AND CROSSFIT, LLC, a Colorado limited liability company ("Tenant"). 

RECITALS 

A. At the time of its purchase of 137 Society Dr. Landlord assumed that Lease with Tenant dated August 24
2009, as amended, a copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit "A" (the "Lease").

B. SMART executed an amendment to the lease with the Tenant in December of 2020. A copy of this lease is
attached as Exhibit “B”

C. Landlord and Tenant desire to further amend the Lease as hereinafter provided.

COVENANTS AND AGREEMENTS 

NOW, THEREFORE, Landlord and Tenant agree as follows: 

I. Term: The Lease shall be extended to June 30th, 2024. Landlord also agrees that Tenant may terminate
the Lease without penalty upon Sixty (60) days advance written notice if Tenant secures a new location to relocate
its business.

2. Effect of Amendment: Except as expressly modified herein, the Lease is unmodified, is hereby ratified and
affirmed, will remain in full force and effect in accordance with its terms and will apply to the Premises. If there is
any inconsistency between the terms of the Lease and the terns of this Amendment, provisions of this Amendment
will govern and control the rights and obligations of Landlord and Tenant.

3. Counterparts:  This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be
deemed to be an original, and all such counterparts taken together will constitute one and the same instrument.
This Amendment may be executed and delivered by one party to the other by facsimile or e-mail (PDF)
transmission, and counterparts executed and delivered in such manner will be fully binding and enforceable to the
same effect as if an original had been executed and delivered instead.
In all other respects, the Lease Agreement remains in full force and effect.

"LANDLORD" SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 

By: _____________________________ 
Printed Name: David Averill 
Title: Executive Director 

"TENANT" TELLURIDE GYMNASTICS AND CROSSFIT, LLC 
By: _____________________________ 
Printed Name: _________________________ 
Title: _________________________ 

EXHIBIT C
21



EXHIBIT D 22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32

CLICK HERE TO RETURN TO AGENDA



AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY (AIS) 

San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation 

Meeting Date Agenda Item Submitted By 

June 9th, 2022 3 Averill 

Objective/Requested Action 

Action is requested of the Board to approve a supplemental FY22 budget, capital plan, and 
related spending appropriations to accommodate unanticipated revenues and to obligate 
additional funding for unanticipated expenses. 

    Report 
    Work Session 
   Discussion 

 X Action 

Key Points 

While generally very positive for SMART, the first few months of FY2022 have not been without their challenges. 
Revenue (sales and property taxes, RETA, and fares) are very strong through the end of May. However, fuel, wages for 
professional services, and capital costs are rising at the same time – similar to most things in the economy.  

The proposed amendment to the FY22 budget under consideration includes revisions to revenue and projected 
spending.  

On the revenue side we are looking at an increase in revenue projections of $220,000. This consists of $200,000 in 
additional sales tax and $20,000 in additional fare revenue. These revised projections are based on YTD actuals and 
historical trends. There is also the potential for an additional $128,000 in CDOT MMOF funding which would bring the 
total in increased revenue to $348,000. 

The net increase in spending with the amended budget is projected to be $213,200. This consists of $128,000 for the 
local share of the design project for the Meadows Underpass, an additional $50,000 in fuel allowance, a very minor 
CASTA dues increase (+$200), an increased budget for large bus parts allowance (+$10,000) and an additional $25,000 
into the service expansion pool.  

The Board is also asked to consider revisions to the FY2022 capital plan – partly to cover anticipated costs in the 
current year and also to build a more complete picture of the “ripple effect” into funding available for the out-years of 
the capital plan. What is primarily driving changes to the capital plan is a mix of opportunities such as the 
Congressionally Directed Spending request and challenges such as rapidly increasing prices and current availability of 
vehicles. In detail: 

- Changes reflect costs increases for large buses (now $700,000 per unit) and the number of vehicles (4 total
large buses up from 3)

- Reflects a drastic per unit increase for body-on-chassis buses
- Reflects per unit increases for vanpool vehicles (12 passenger vans) and the number of vehicles (4 total up

from 1)
- Reflects anticipated increases in materials and labor costs for repairs at Lawson Hill facilities

The one upside opportunity with this amended capital plan is the chance to get 2 of the large buses funded through 
the Congressionally Directed Spending request process which is currently underway. This unanticipated opportunity 
requires that we show that the local match is in place and obligated. 

33



Out years (2023 and beyond) are included here to give an idea of the big picture and what we have coming in future 
years. Capital spending for these years can be amended in any future budget process.   

Committee Discussion 

NA 

Supporting Information 

NA 

Fiscal Impact 

Fiscal impact is projected to be neutral. 

Advantages 

Advantages are that increasing the revenue projection (with known increases in costs) allows SMART to keep the 
budget balanced and potentially capitalize on unanticipated opportunities. 

Disadvantages 

None noted at this time. 

Analysis/Recommendation(s) 

None at this time. 

Attachments 

Attachment A – FY22 Amended budget 
Attachment B – Amended FY2022 Capital Plan 

34



SMART AMENDED FY22 BUDGET

June 9th, 2022

2022 Amended 

Budget

Beginning Operating Fund Balance $2,800,000

Transfers

 Transfer to Operating and Capital Reserve $2,000,000

Total Transfers $2,000,000

Remaining Operating Fund Balance after Transfers $800,000

PROJECTED REVENUES

SMART Ballot Tax Revenue

 Sales Tax $776,440

 Property Tax $693,878

Subtotal Taxes $1,470,318

Intergovernmental Revenue

 San Miguel County Contribution (RETA) $150,000

Subtotal Intergovernmental $150,000

Fees for Services

 Fares - Norwood/Downvalley/Rico $40,000

 Fares - Montrose/Ridgway Van pools $7,500

Subtotal Fees for Services $47,500

Grant Revenue

 CDOT Operating (5311) $182,160

 CRRSAA grant $65,000

 CDOT MMOF funding - Meadows Underpass planning and design project $148,000

 CDOT Planning (5304) $15,000

Subtotal Grant Revenue $410,160

 Facility Revenue

 137 and 135 Society Dr. $100,000

Subtotal Facility Revenue $100,000

Total All Revenues $2,177,978

PROJECTED EXPENSES

General Expenses

Personnel Expenditures

 Salaries $207,000

 Benefits $65,000

Payroll taxes $16,000

Subtotal Personnel Expenditures $288,000

Professional Services + Operations 

 Mileage reimbursement 2,200

Professional Services + Operations continued next page

ATTACHMENT A 35



Professional Services + Operations continued 

 Rent  - Office Expenses $0

 Operating Expenses $6,000

 PR/Marketing $50,000

 Website support $3,500

 Onboard tech annual license fees $9,700

 Attorney fees $15,000

 Bookkeeping-CPA Audit $5,300

 CIRSA PC/WC coverage $12,000

 Treasurers Fees $19,000

 Consulting services - Meadows Underpass planning and design project (grant match) $148,000

 Consulting services - Senior and Disabled Mobility gaps study (grant match) $8,800

Subtotal Professional Services + Operations $279,500

Association Dues, Conferences and Training

 Colorado Association of Transit Agencies (CASTA) Dues $1,700

 South West Transit Association (SWTA) Dues $250

 Training Registration and Lodging $1,500

 Travel expenses $2,000

 Conference Registration and Lodging $4,000

Subtotal Association Dues, Conferences and Training $9,450

Subtotal General Expenses $576,950

Transit Service, Facilities, and Bike Share Expenses

 Transit Service Expenses

 Down Valley Route $114,000

 Norwood Route $170,000

 Lawson Hill Service $257,000

 Rico Route $47,000

 Fuel for Norwood/Down Valley/Rico/Lawson Hill $100,000

 Commuter Shuttle Program $82,000

 Offseason service, includes Lawson and Meadows local services $260,000

 Medical Shuttles - Allpoints $15,000

 COVID supplementary service $25,000

 Service Expansion Pool $185,000

 Unscheduled maintenance/other costs $30,000

 Parts allowance for large buses $40,000

Subtotal Transit Service Expenses $1,325,000

Lawson Hill Intercept Lot Expenses

 Winter Plowing $10,500

 Security/Parking Enforcement $9,000

 Janitorial Services for restrooms $13,000

 Janitorial Supplies $2,500

 Recycling and Waste removal $1,000

 Landscape Maintenance $2,500

 Utilities (Gas/Electric/Water) $2,500

 Subtotal Lawson Lot Management Expenses $41,000

Facility Maintenance Expenses continued next page

36



Facility Maintenance Expenses continued

 Facility Maintenance Expenses

  Lawson Owners HOA dues $1,580

  Property management services $9,000

  Winter Plowing $1,500

  Janitorial $3,300

  Landscape Maintenance $2,000

  Utilities $4,500

 Subtotal Facility Expenses $11,300.00

 Special Projects

  SMART Lawson Hill facilities planning and design $75,000

  Regional Parking Project $10,000

 Subtotal Special Projects $85,000.00

 Subtotal Transit Service, Facility, and Special Projects Expenses $1,462,300

Total All Expenses $2,039,250

Projected Yearly Net Income $138,728

Ending Fund Balance, 12/31/22 $938,728

37



SMART FY22-FY26 Amended Capital Plan
Capital Reserve as of 1/1/2022 $1,109,623

Transfer of $2,000,000 from operating account as part of 2022 budget $2,000,000

Total Capital Reserves $3,109,623

Projected Capital Projects - 2022 Total Cost
Anticipated 

State/Federal Share Local Share
Grant Funding Secured? 

(source)
Replacement Buses for Norwood (2) $1,400,000 $1,120,000 $280,000 No (5339/5311/FASTER)
Buses for Montrose service (2) $1,400,000 $1,120,000 $280,000 No (CDS/5339/5311/FASTER)
Additional cutaway for Lawson/Off-Season service $205,000 $164,000 $41,000 No (5339/5311/FASTER)
Lawson facility repairs $35,000 $0 $35,000 NA
Additional vanpool van $68,000 $0 $68,000 NA
Replace 3 vanpool vehicles $204,000 $163,200 $40,800 No (5339/5311/FASTER)
Total $3,312,000 $2,567,200 $744,800 No

End of FY22 Capital Reserve Balance assuming no additional transfers $2,364,823

Projected Capital Projects - 2023 Total Cost
Anticipated 

State/Federal Share Local Share
Grant Funding Secured? 

(source)
Matching funds for Meadows Underpass Construction $250,000 $0 $250,000 No (unknown)
Rico bus barn project $200,000 $0 $200,000 No (5339/5311/FASTER)
Replace 3 vanpool vehicles $204,000 $163,200 $40,800 No
Norwood bus barn expansion $225,000 $180,000 $45,000 No
Total $879,000 $343,200 $535,800

End of FY23 Capital Reserve Balance assuming no additional transfers $1,829,023

Projected Capital Projects - 2024 Total Cost
Anticipated 

State/Federal Share Local Share
Grant Funding Secured? 

(source)
Driveway repairs and modification - 137 Society Drive $200,000 $160,000 $40,000 No (5339/5311/FASTER)
Tools and equipment for maintenance facility $100,000 $80,000 $20,000 No (5339/5311/FASTER)
Lift for maintenance facility - 137 Society Drive $75,000 $60,000 $15,000 No (5339/5311/FASTER)
Replace Rico bus (704) $75,000 $60,000 $15,000 No (5339/5311/FASTER)
Total $75,000 $60,000 $15,000

End of FY24 Capital Reserve Balance assuming no additional transfers $1,814,023

Projected Capital Projects - 2025 Total Cost
Anticipated 

State/Federal Share Local Share
Grant Funding Secured? 

(source)
Replace 3 Vanpool vehicles $204,000 $163,200 $40,800 No (5339/5311/FASTER)
Replacement buses for Lawson/Off-Season (assumed electric) $780,000 $624,000 $156,000 No (5339/5311/FASTER)
Total $984,000 $787,200 $196,800

End of FY25 Capital Reserve Balance assuming no additional transfers $1,617,223

Projected Capital Projects - 2026 Total Cost
Anticipated 

State/Federal Share Local Share
Grant Funding Secured? 

(source)
No identified projects $0 $0 $0 0
Total $0 $0 $0

End of FY26 Capital Reserve Balance assuming no additional transfers $1,617,223

ATTACHMENT B 38



RESOLUTION OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION APPROVING 
AN AMENDED FISCAL YEAR 2022 BUDGET AND CAPITAL PLAN AND RELATED 

APPROPRIATIONS 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-12 

RECITALS: 

WHEREAS, the San Miguel Authority for Regional Transportation (“SMART”) was 
approved by the registered electors of the Town of Telluride, Town of Mountain Village, and 
that portion of unincorporated San Miguel County located within the SMART boundaries, 
pursuant to the Colorado Regional Transportation Authority Law, C.R.S Title 43, Article 4, Part 
6, at the general election held on November 8, 2016, and; 

WHEREAS, SMART is governed by the Colorado Regional Transportation Authority 
Law and the SMART Intergovernmental Agreement (“SMART IGA”) approved by each of the 
governing bodies of the Town of Telluride, Town of Mountain Village and San Miguel County, 
and; 

WHEREAS, an annual budget for 2022 was prepared, considered, and approved by the 
SMART Board of Directors at a regular noticed meeting on December 9th, 
2021, and; 

WHEREAS, due to strong economic conditions throughout the region, SMART is revising 
its Sales Tax revenue estimate to $776,440 and its fare revenues to $40,000 to be used to offset 
administrative and operational expenses, and; 

WHEREAS, SMART is facing unanticipated expenditures in the areas of fuel, association 
dues, local matching funds for grants, vehicle maintenance, and service expansion costs, and;  

WHEREAS, due to rising capital costs and unanticipated capital grant funding 
opportunities, revisions to the 2022 Capital Plan have become necessary, and;  

WHEREAS, upon due and proper notice, published in accordance with the state budget 
law, said supplemental budget was open for inspection by the public at a designated place, a 
public hearing was held on June 9th, 2022, and interested taxpayers were given an opportunity to 
file or register any objections to said supplemental budget, and; 

WHEREAS, it is not only required by law, but also necessary to appropriate the 

revenues and reserve/fund balances provided in the budget to and for the purposes 

described below, thereby establishing a limitation on expenditures for the operations of 

SMART. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL 

AUTHORITY FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION: 

1. That an amendment to the FY22 Budget (Exhibit A) of an additional $220,000 in tax and
fare revenue be used for approved administrative and operations expenses.

39



2. That the amended budget, including revised revenues and expenditures, as submitted
and herein above summarized be adopted, and the same hereby is approved and adopted
as the supplemental 2022 budget of SMART and shall be a part of the public records of
SMART.

3. That the FY22 Capital Plan (Exhibit B) and associated costs is hereby amended as part of
this supplemental budget action.

4. That the following sums are hereby appropriated from the 2022 revenues for the
purposes stated:

General Fund 

General Operations      $576,950 

Transit and Transportation Services  $1,462,300 

Total General Fund ·  $2,039,250 

Capital Fund 
Capital Purchase $744,800 

Capital Reserve $ 2,364,823 
Total Capital Fund $3,109,623 

5. That the SMART Executive Director is hereby authorized and directed to take such
administrative steps necessary to further implement this Resolution.

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SAN MIGUEL AUTHORITY 

FOR REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AT A REGULAR PUBLIC MEETING THIS 9TH DAY OF JUNE 

2022. 

  ___________________________________ 
 Kris Holstrom, Board Chair 

ATTEST: 

__________________________________ 
 David Averill, SMART Executive Director 

I, the Secretary of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of the San Miguel Authority for Regional 

Transportation (the “Authority”), do hereby certify that (a) the foregoing Resolution was 

adopted by the Board at a meeting held June 9th, 2022; (b) the meeting was open to the public; 

(c) the Authority provided at least 48 hours’ written notice of such meeting to each Director and

40



Alternate Director of the Authority and to the Governing Body of each Member of the Authority; 

(d) the Resolution was duly moved, seconded and adopted at such meeting by the affirmative

vote of at least two-thirds of the Directors then in office who were eligible to vote thereon

voting; and (e) the meeting was noticed, and all proceedings relating to the adoption of the

Resolution were conducted in accordance with the San Miguel Authority for Regional

Transportation Intergovernmental Agreement, dated as of November 9, 2016, all applicable

bylaws, rules, regulations and resolutions of the Authority, the normal procedures of the

Authority relating to such matters, all applicable constitutional provisions and statutes of the

State of Colorado and all other applicable laws.

WITNESS my hand this ______ day of ___________________, 2022. 

___________________________________________ 

 Secretary to the Board 

41

CLICK HERE TO RETURN TO AGENDA



This information suggests that the need for Senior & 
Disabled transit services is more prevalent in 
Montrose and Dolores Counties than it is in San 
Miguel County.  In San Miguel County, Seniors living 
in the West End are more likely to need transit 
services than those in the east end of San Miguel 
County.

Existing services that cater to the needs of the 
Seniors and Disabled are All Points Transit, Disabled 
American Veterans and Tri-County Health Network.

There was general consensus among stakeholders 
that there was unmet need in the realm of getting 
people who aren’t comfortable driving to medical 
appointments or to other services that aren’t available 
in their respective communities.

One of the biggest challenges that is starting to 
emerge is; how do you tell the people that need the 
services, how to access those services?  The internet 
is the go-to information disseminator for a lot of 
SMART’s users, but people in the more rural parts of 
our region may not have access to internet or be 
unaccustomed to using it.

Operation’s Manager’s Report, June 
2022
June 6rd, 2022

• Senior & Disabled Transit Service
Roadmap

As you may recall, in the original Intergovernmental 
Agreement between San Miguel County, the Town of 
Mountain Village and the Town of Telluride, SMART 
was tasked with engaging in comprehensive long-
range planning.  Planning to enhance or to provide 
specialized services including paratransit and 
transportation to medical appointments was 
specifically included in that direction.    

To fulfill that obligation, SMART hired Fehr & Peers, a 
transportation consulting firm, to help us identify 
gaps in specialized service needs across San Miguel, 
Montrose and Dolores Counties.  The request for 
proposals asked that the consultants gather 
information on existing conditions and then create a 
roadmap to help us support existing services and 
potentially make the distribution of these services 
more efficient.

We are still in the information gathering part of the 
study.  Initially that exercise included compiling 
demographic information, conducting phone 
interviews with stake holders including folks from All 
Points Transit, San Miguel County Social Service 
Director, Carol Friedrich, Tri County Health 
Network’s Executive Director Lynn Borup, Eva Veitch 
from Region 10 and operators of the Telluride and 
Norwood Food Banks.  We also interviewed Carrie 
Andrew from the Lone Cone Library and Deana 
Sheriff from the West End Economic Development 
Corporation.  

On May 10th and 11th, we held community meetings in 
Naturita, Norwood, Placerville and the Mountain 
Village. These meetings included a Spanish 
interpreter.  We did not get a large turnout, but we 
did come away with a lot of valuable information.  

Key take-aways from the existing conditions of this 
study include the following:

• San Miguel County, Nucla, Naturita & Rico have an
average of 19.75% of citizens that are over 65.

• Naturita, Nucla and Rico have an average of 19.7%
of people that are disabled, while the average of
San Miguel County residents that are disabled is
5.5%

1

42



I recognize that there may be organizations that I 
have missed and would welcome suggestions.  
Increasing costs of fuel, congestion on the spur and 
climate changes that have a direct effect on ski 
economies represent an opportunity to encourage 
ridership.

• Ridership Rico Route

Rico ridership came up in May from a low in April but I
expect it to go down again in June because school is 
out.    

It is still much lower than we would like.  According to 
the American Community Survey, only 4% of Rico 
residents are using public transportation while 56.8% 
are working outside of Rico, likely in Telluride, 
although the data doesn’t specify.  I will be looking to 
Traci Jones with Studio 6, for some ideas to market 
our service to Rico.

21
1

17
4

21
1

10
3

10
2

13
7

94

11
0

70

13
7

J A N U A R Y F E B R U A R Y M A R C H A P R I L M A Y

RICO
2021 2022

Operation’s Manager’s Report, June 
2022
June 6rd, 2022

• Senior & Disabled Transit Service
Roadmap continued

Next steps:

• Fehr & Peers will produce a draft list of
suggestions including:

o Improving and/or expanding current
services

o Marketing, promoting and disseminating
information about existing services

o Developing and/or expanding existing
partnerships.

• Fehr & Peers will provide a survey for distribution
at Senior lunches in Telluride, Norwood and
Naturita and on the SMART website that will gather
information from people regarding their preferred
suggestions from the list.

A copy of the “SMART Senior & Disabled Transit 
Service Roadmap Existing Conditions Assessment” is 
available upon request.

• Summer Season

Summer season started on May 26th.  Ridership on the 
new Norwood routes has been thin so far, especially 
based upon the telephone responses that I have 
gotten about the late trip.  The first week had 3, 0, 3, 
4 and 4 riders on the midday bus and 1, 0, 1, 3 and 1 
rider on the late bus.  

We expect it to pick up as the summer progresses and 
people realize that it is consistently available.  

Outreach to the community regarding the new 
scheduled included:

• Notifications on social media
• Notifications to the Norwood and Telluride papers
• Notifications on KOTO
• Notifications to the public information officers of

Telluride and Mountain Village
• Notifications to staff of Nucla, Naturita and San

Miguel County
• Emails to the Lawson Hill Property Owner’s

Company, the Telluride Tourism Board and
Collaborative Action for Immigrants

2

137

174

127

70

137

98 93 86

52

84

39

81

41 18 53

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY

Rico Monthly Ridership 
2022

Total Rico AM Rico PM

43



• Ridership Down Valley

Down Valley, like the other routes came down in April, 
but increased during May.  June numbers will likely be 
higher.  The Bivi generates ridership and it was quieter 
during off-season. 

Operation’s Manager’s Report, June 
2022
June 6rd, 2022

• Ridership Norwood Route

Norwood ridership continues to be strong.  According 
to the American Community Survey 9.1% of Norwood 
commuters use public transportation.  The national 
average is 5%.  

Norwood ridership is also stronger than it was last 
year.  Riders from Nucla, Naturita and Redvale are 
contributing to this uptick.  Naturita accounts for 3-4 
riders per day and Redvale accounts for an additional 
4-5.

3

1101

1302

1508

1070
982

427 418 467
375 380

482 423
584

327
474

192

461 457
368

1253

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY

Norwood AM

Norwood AM Total Nucla 6:45 AM M-F

Norwood 6:55 AM M-F Norwood 7:30 AM S-S

Norwood 9:45 AM M-F

13
96

12
22 13

96

11
11 12

52

19
36

18
21

22
17

14
40

17
19

J A N U A R Y F E B R U A R Y M A R C H A P R I L M A Y

NORWOOD
2021 2022

267

442
403

161

233

108
153 158

58 9083 109 110 53 6576

180
135

50 78

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY

Down Valley

Down Valley Total DV AM DV Midday DV PM
14

3

14
4

14
3

10
4 12

0

26
7

44
2

34
1

16
1

23
3

J A N U A R Y F E B R U A R Y M A R C H A P R I L M A Y

DOWN VALLEY
2021 2022

44



• Ridership Lawson Hill

Low numbers in April and May are the result of the 
few days in each month that the route was not a part 
of the Off-season route.

In June we will start seeing numbers from the 
additional routes in the early morning, midday and 
evening.   

Operation’s Manager’s Report, June 
2022
June 6rd, 2022

• Ridership Off-season (includes Lawson
Hill and Meadows and the Express Route)

April and May Off-season regular route totaled 4,891 
in April and 6,643 in May.  SMART did not run the 
Spring Off-season 2021 route.  Mountain Village did.  
There may be some differences in record keeping 
between the two entities that could account for the 
variation between this year and last year.  

COVID could also accounted for the difference in 
ridership between this year and last.   

4

4891

6643

1358 1736
2432

3376

1101 1531

APRIL MAY

Off-season

Off Season Total Off Season AM

Off Season Mid Offseason PM

13
29

35
85

45
91

66
43

A P R I L M A Y

OFF-SEASON
2021 2022

1662

2027

2600

163 297420 646 768
40 95

1242 1381

1832

123 202

JANUARY FEBRUARY MARCH APRIL MAY

Lawson Hill

Lawson Total Lawson AM Lawson PM
11

76

97
1 11

76

12
9 29

7

16
62

20
27

22
75

16
3

0

J A N U A R Y F E B R U A R Y M A R C H A P R I L M A Y

LAWSON HILL
2021 2022

45

C L I C K  H E R E  T O  R E T U R N  T O  A G E N D A



SMART Executive Director report – June 9thth, 2022 

Grants: Bus and Bus Facilities grant was submitted successfully. We think we’ll hear back about 
that one in August. As a reminder, this was an application for (4) large 40’ transit buses, (1) 
additional cutaway vehicles, and (3) replacement vanpool vehicles. We also received positive 
news that our Congressionally Directed Spending (CDS) request cleared the first screening of 
projects and is Washington currently and is being considered as part of the final bill mark up 
process. 

Lawson Facilities: We’ll be doing some concrete repair down by the gymnastics academy this 

summer to address some spalling and cracking. We will also be fixing some potholes in the 

driveway and possibly some work on the south retaining wall. 

Meadows Underpass project: Stantec (consulting engineers) are addressing CDOT comments 

on the FIR planset. At this point we are in a bit of a holding pattern until we find out the outcome 

of the most recent grant (CDOT MMOF) request for the completion of the project. 

Fiscal Year ’21 Audit: Progress on remaining work has been a little sporadic due to the auditor’s 

workload and schedule. No update other than we’ve requested an extension for the filing date. 

CASTA Spring Conference report out: Kari and I attended the CASTA Spring Conference in 

Colorado Springs. Kari attended a 3 day training and I participated in CASTA Board activities 

and presented on one session panel. There were some interesting sessions on funding large, 

complex projects, CDOT vehicle price agreements, and general CDOT updates. 

46


	14 Ops Manager Report June 2022.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4




